
St Ignace Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: City Council Meeting 

Time: Mar 7, 2022 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85186670693 

 

Meeting ID: 851 8667 0693 

One tap mobile 

+13126266799,,85186670693# US (Chicago) 

+16465588656,,85186670693# US (New York) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 851 8667 0693 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbjHC0wcgf 



 



 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, March 7, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID: 851 8667 0693 

 
****A G E N D A**** 

 
1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to Agenda 
6) Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items (2-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of February 21, 2022 
8) Old Business 

 
A. Adopt Rules of Procedure 
B. Special Event Resolution—Arts Dockside 
C. Special Event Resolution—Car Show 

 
9) New Business 
 

A. SIVB Fireworks—Agreement & Resolution 
B. Resolution—Highland Games 
C. LBE Purchase—Home Show Pipe & Drape 
D. Budget Amendments & Transfers 
 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment Regarding Non-Agenda Items (3-minute limit) 
12) City Manager’s Report 
13) Committee Reports 
14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
TDD (800) 649-3777 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, February 21, 2022, in 
the City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference 
available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Williford gave the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember 
Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
   
ABSENT:  Councilmembers Cronan (absence was approved at a prior meeting) and 
Councilmember Clapperton.  
It was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to excuse 
Councilmember Clapperton due to health reasons.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Darcy Long, City Manager; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Stephanie 
Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Tony Brown, Police Chief; Charles Palmer, City Attorney. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA – None.  
 
LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT (2-min limit) 
 
Public comment was received regarding the proposed Rules of Procedure document. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2022 REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING: 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to approve the 
minutes from February 7, 2022, as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
A.  ADOPT RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
City Manager Long reviewed the proposed Rules of Procedure document with Council.  After 
some discussion regarding the public comments, it was the consensus of Council to have the 
City Manager make the corrections that were identified and verify some of the information 
regarding the Open Meetings Act (OMA).  City Manager Long agreed and will bring an updated 
version to Council for consideration. 
 
B.  PROPOSED ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS 
 



Betsy Dayrell-Hart, Planning Commission Chairperson, presented Council with the proposed 
Zoning Code Chapter 38 Amendments (four pages) that have processed through the required 
Public Hearing and a Zoning Board work session.  Ms. Dayrell-Hart also noted a correction to 
the document on page two, under DIVISION 6 (16), paragraph two to remove the words “leave 
‘shall comply with the single state construction code’, or” and the words “the wording”. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to adopt the 
Zoning Code Amendments with the noted correction.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember  
         Williford. 
No:  Councilmember Fullerton 
Motion carried four to one. 
 
C.  OTHER EMPLOYEE COVID PREMIUM PAY 
 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION TO DIRECT ADMINISTRATION TO ESTABLISH ESSENTIAL 

WORKER PREMIUM PAY UNDER AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, supported by 

Councilmember Pelter: 

 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, President Biden signed the U.S. Senate amended H.R. 1319 

(P.L. 117-2) known as the American Rescue Plan Act “ARPA”; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, the U.S. Treasury issued the Interim Final Rule to implement 

ARPA in Title 31, Part 35 of the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”); and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Final Rule, recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds “CSLFRF” to provide premium pay to eligible employees who performed 

essential work during the COVID-19 public health emergency. See CSLFRF Frequently Asked 

Questions No. 5.3; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Council will provide premium pay to two part-time staff in the Recreation 

Department, City Hall’s cleaning personnel, Museum Director, DDA Director, recently retired 

Chief Plant Operator, and recently retired Water/Wastewater Foreman who performed essential 

work as permitted by the Final Rule, in accordance with City Charter, Ordinances, and other 

applicable agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the City has identified personnel who serve on the during the pandemic 

encountered the risks associated with exposure to COVID-19 first-hand when providing public 

services to the community on a regular basis, during the pandemic; and 

 

WHEREAS, those personnel are employees of the City in the aforementioned departments, 

respectively; and 



WHEREAS, Premium Pay, one-time payment that will not have retirement accounted for in this 

payment, will be paid in March 2022 in one or two separate payroll checks. Employees will have 

the choice to split the payroll into two distributions. The amount of premium pay is as follows: 

• Two-Part-Time Recreation Staff as identified by the City Manager who worked an 

average of 20 hours or more during this time frame.  Will receive $500 each.  

• City Hall Cleaning Personnel. Will receive $500.  

• Museum Director. Will receive $500.  

• DDA Director. Will receive $1,750 with no retirement be paid on the payroll.  

• Brian Peterson, CHIEF PLANT OPERATOR (Retired). Will receive $1,750 with no 

retirement to be paid on the payroll. 

• Dennis Brown, WATER LINE/WASTEWATER FOREMAN (Retired). Will receive $1,750 

with no retirement to be paid on the payroll. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby direct the City 

Manager’s Office to Budget in the 2022 Budget this Authorized COVID Premium Pay in the 

appropriate budget for each employee.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Fullerton and  
         Mayor LaLonde.  
No:  None. 
Absent:  Councilmembers Clapperton and Cronan. 
 
Resolution declared Adopted. 

D.  POLICE CHIEF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
 
City Manager Long informed Council that the Police Chief’s employment contract needed an 
amendment to the Life & Disability benefit approved at $60,000 for Life Insurance.  The City’s 
maximum benefit allowed under the current Standard Life & Disability Plan is $50,000. 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to approve 
the amendment to the Police Chief contract for the Life & Disability benefit to be set at the 
maximum $50,000. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde and Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
No:  Councilmember Pelter. 
Motion carried four to one. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  SPECIAL EVENT RESOLUTION ARTS DOCKSIDE 2022 

 
Upon noting that no resolution was included in the packet, it was the consensus of Council to 
bring this item back for the next regular meeting. 
 
B.  SPECIAL EVENT RESOLUTION CAR SHOW  
 



Upon noting that no resolution was included in the packet, it was the consensus of Council to 
bring this item back for the next regular meeting. 
 
C.  ZONING FEES RESOLUTION 
 

Resolution 
 
             The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Fullerton, 
supported by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace has the responsibility and the authority to enforce the 
provisions of Act 207 of the Public Acts of the State of Michigan for 1921, as amended, and 
known as the City or Village Zoning act, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace has the responsibility and the authority to enforce the 
provisions of Section 9 of Act 230 of the Public Acts of the State of Michigan for 1972, as 
amended, and known as the State Construction Code Act, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace has adopted the “Code of Ordinances, City of St. 
Ignace” Chapter 38, Zoning Chapter 6, Article II, “Single State Construction Code”, enabling the 
City of  
St. Ignace to enforce the provisions of the Public Acts, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace, by its adoption of the local ordinances, has the 
authority to establish the zoning permit fees in order to enforce the provisions of the Public Acts. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Zoning permit fees for the City of St. Ignace 
be established as follows: 
 
 Residential: 
 
 House – Plan Review, Zoning and Administration fee, $95 

 
Additions and enclosed porch - $75  

 Carports - $65  
 Decks and covered porches - $65 
 Demolition - $100 
 Fences - $40 

Garages - $95  
Misc.  Construction - $50 
New Construction - $100 
Storage Building/sheds under 200 sq. feet - $25 
Storage Building/sheds over 200 sq. feet - $35 
 
Change of use without alterations - $50 
Change of use with alterations - $60 
 
Penalty for Building without a Permit:  $250.00 plus cost of Permit (New) 
 

 Commercial: 
 



House – Plan Review, Zoning and Administration fee, $100 
 
 Additions - $100 
 Carports - $75 
 Decks and covered porches - $95 
 Demolition - $200 

Fences - $50 
Garages - $100 

 Misc. Construction - $75 
 New Construction - $120 
  

Storage Building/sheds under 200 sq. feet - $30 
 Storage Building/sheds over 200 sq. feet – $50 

  
Change of Use, without alterations - $75 
Change of Use with alterations - $85 

 
Permanent signs/billboards - $150 

 Wall Mounted signs under 50 SF - $55 
 Off Premise Sign - $200 

 
Radio, TV towers, wind powered generator towers, commercial - $350 

  
Penalty for Building without a Permit $250 plus cost of Permit (New) 
Contractor Penalty for Building without a Permit $250 plus cost of Permit (New)  

 
            Board Review Fees: 
 Planning Commission Review - $200 
 Zoning Board of Appeals - $300 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that non-compliance will result in a Civil 
Infraction Citation. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Fullerton and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  Councilmember Pelter. 
Absent:  Councilmembers Cronan and Clapperton. 
 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
D.  2022 FEE SCHEDULE 
 
City Manager Long informed Council that the City has been compiling a list of fees into one 
document for various departments.  It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by 
Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve the Fee Schedule as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter,  
         Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 



No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
E.  CITY MANAGER FUNERAL LEAVE 
 
City Manager Long requested Council’s approval to use three days of Funeral Leave for time he 
took to attend a family funeral in January.  
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to approve the 
three days of Funeral Leave.  It was also discussed that this benefit will be addressed in the 
proposed Employee Manual Policy. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
F.  FINANCIALS 
 
City Manager Long reviewed the January 2022 financials with Council, stating there are a few 
budget amendments that will be coming up. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $24,177.17. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Fullerton 
         and Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Public comment was received from Jonathan Scheel of Petoskey, candidate for State 
Representative for the 107th District.  Further comment was received regarding City 
staff/administration, Pond Hockey event volunteers and Police Chief Brown’s employment 
contract. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Long discussed the upcoming MML Capital Conference, RV’s on private property, 
Short-Term Rental/Granicus process and variance procedures with the Zoning Board of 
Appeals.  
 
COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The St. Ignace-Area EMS Council (unofficial) minutes from the February 15th meeting were 
presented. 



COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Councilmembers commended the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau on the successful Pond Hockey 
weekend event, thanked the public for their input and addressed some of the recent social 
media comments regarding utility billing and the Ski Hill.  The co-meeting between the Planning 
Commission and Zoning Board was also appreciated by Council.  
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE, MICHIGAN  

CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Table of Contents  

I. Authority………………………………………………………………2  

II. Meetings……………………………………………………………….2  

A. Organizational Meeting; Election of Mayor Pro-Tem  

B. Regular Meetings  

C. Special Meetings  

D. Closed Meetings  

E. Recessed Meetings  

F. Work Sessions 

G. Special Committees  

H. Emergency Meetings  

I. Place of Meetings  

J. Time of Meetings  

K. Public Notice of Meetings  

III. Meeting Procedure…………………………………………………… 4  

A. Quorum  

B. Presiding Officer  

C. Agenda Preparation  

D. Agenda Distribution  

E. Public Comment/Public Hearings  

IV. Voting…………………………………………………………………6  

A. Duty to Vote  

B. Vote Required for Action  

C. Calling for Vote  

D. Debate/Discussion 

V. Conflict of Interest……………………………………………………7  

A. Disclosure  

B. Definition  

VI. General Rules…………………………………………………………8  

A. Attendance at Meetings  

B. Filling Council Vacancy  

C. Record of Meetings 

D. Suspension of Rules  

E. Amendment of Rules 

 

 



2 
 

I. AUTHORITY  

These rules are adopted by resolution of the St. Ignace City Council under the authority of Section 6.7 

of the City Charter. None of the rules stated herein may supersede the City Charter, City Code, or 

Laws of the State of Michigan. These rules replace any and all prior written and oral City policies, 

practices, or procedures about the subjects contained herein 

II. MEETINGS  

A. Organizational Meeting; Election of Mayor Pro-Tem.  

1. On the first Monday following the regular municipal election, the council shall meet at the 

usual place for holding meetings of the legislative body of the city, for the purpose of 

organization. (Charter Sec. 6.1)  

2. The council, at its first regular meeting following each municipal election shall elect one of 

its members to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem for a term to coincide with the Mayor’s two-year term of 

office. Such election shall be by majority vote of the members of the Council in office at the time. 

The Mayor Pro-Tem shall, during the absence or disability of the Mayor, act as and exercise all 

the duties and possess all the powers of the Mayor. (Charter Sec. 4.4, 4.5(e))  

B. Regular Meetings 

The council shall provide by resolution for the time and place of its regular meetings and shall 

hold at least two regular meetings each month. (Charter Sec. 6.1)  

C. Special Meetings  

1. Special Meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the mayor, any 

two members of the council, or the City Manager, upon at least eighteen hours written notice to 

each member, served personally or left at their usual place of residence; provided, however, any 

special meeting at which all members of the council are present shall be a legal meeting for all 

purposes without such written notice. (Charter Sec. 6.2) OMA Sec. 5(4)  

2. No official action shall be transacted at any special meeting unless the item has been 

stated in the notice of the meeting. However, any business which may lawfully come before a 

regular meeting may be transacted at a special meeting if all the members of the Council present 

consent thereto and all the members absent file their written consent.  (Charter Sec. 6.3)  

3. A public notice stating the date, time, and place of the meeting shall be posted at least 

18 hours before the meeting at City Hall and on the City’s website. (OMA Sec. 5(4). 

D. Closed Meetings  

Closed meetings may be scheduled in compliance with the Open Meetings Act. 15.268 Closed 

sessions; permissible purposes. Sec. 8. A public body may meet in a closed session for the 

following purposes: 

 1. To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or 

charges brought against, or to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of, a public officer, 

employee, staff member, or individual agent, if the named person requests a closed hearing. A 

person requesting a closed hearing may rescind the request at any time, in which case the matter 



3 
 

at issue shall be considered after the rescission only in open sessions. Requires simple majority 

vote (4).  

2. For strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective 

bargaining agreement if either negotiating party requests a closed hearing. Requires simple 

majority vote (4).  

3. To consider the purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to purchase 

or lease that real property is obtained. Requires 2/3 majority vote (5).  

4. To consult with its attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with 

specific pending litigation. Requires 2/3 majority vote (5).  

5. To review and consider the contents of an application for employment or appointment 

to a public office if the candidate requests that the application remain confidential. Requires 2/3 

majority vote (5).  

6. To consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute. 

Requires 2/3 majority vote (5).  

E. Recessed Meetings 

Any meeting of the Council may be recessed to a later date and time, provided that no recess shall 

be for a longer period than until the next scheduled meeting. However, if recessed for more than 

thirty-six (36) hours, public notice shall first be posted at least eighteen (18) hours before 

recessed meeting time. OMA Sec. 5(5)  

F. Work-Sessions  

The council may meet in study sessions at the call of the mayor or majority of the council to 

study difficult issues, gather and analyze information, and clarify problems. Such sessions shall 

be open to the public and no action shall be taken at such sessions. Notice of the session shall be 

given to the council members and to the public at least eighteen (18) hours before the study 

session meeting time. OMA Sec. 5(4)  

G. Special Committees 

 The Mayor may appoint a special committee of no more than three Councilors to study an issue 

or to work on a special project with City Staff. Committee may include staff or other appointed 

City Board members if it is deemed appropriate by a majority of the Councilors. Special 

committees are advisory in nature and have no decision-making powers. 

H. Emergency Meetings  

The council may meet in emergency session in the event of a severe and imminent threat to the 

health, safety or welfare of the public without complying with public notice requirements when 

two-thirds (2/3) of the members serving on the council decide that delay would be detrimental to 

efforts to lessen or respond to the threat. In the absence of such two-thirds (2/3) vote by the City 

Council, the council members and the public shall be given notice at least eighteen (18) hours 

before the emergency meeting time. OMA Sec. 5(5)   

 



4 
 

I. Place of Meetings  

All regular and special meetings will be held in the Council Chambers in the City Hall or as may 

be provided by ordinance or resolution of the council. If a larger room is needed, a notice of the 

change shall be posted on the doors of City Hall with the location of the new meeting place.  

The ability to virtually attend meetings is not guaranteed. Meetings that have a virtual attendance 

option will note as such in the notice of the meeting. Technical difficulties may interfere with 

virtual attendance.  

J. Time of Meeting  

1. All regular meetings, other than the reorganizational meeting, shall begin at 7:00 p.m. 

unless the council, by ordinance or resolution, shall establish a different starting time.  

2. All other meetings may be scheduled for other times.  

3. Time to end meetings. No agenda item of an open meeting other than one under 

consideration will be discussed after 10:00 p.m. Any unfinished business will be deferred to the 

next Council Agenda. The Council shall have the authority to suspend this requirement by 

majority vote only.  

K. Public Notice of Meetings  

1. Regular Meetings - A public notice shall be posted at the City Hall within ten days 

after the first meeting of the council in each calendar year stating the dates, times and places of its 

regular meetings. If there is a change in the schedule of regular meetings, a public notice shall be 

posted at the City Hall within three days after the meeting at which the change is made stating the 

new dates, times, and places of its regular meetings. OMA Sec. 5(2)(3)  

2. Rescheduled Regular Meetings - A public notice stating the date, time, and place of the 

meeting shall be posted at the City Hall at least eighteen hours before the meeting. OMA Sec. 

5(4). 

3. Special Meetings - A public notice stating the date, time, place, and purpose of the 

meeting shall be posted at City Hall at least eighteen hours before the meeting. OMA Sec. 5(4)  

III. MEETING PROCEDURE  

A. Quorum  

A majority of the members of the Council in office at the time shall be a quorum for the 

transaction of business at all meetings of the Council. In the absence of a quorum, a lesser 

number may adjourn any meeting to a later time or date, and in the absence of all members the 

Clerk may adjourn any meeting for not longer than one (1) week. (Charter Section 6.5) 

B. Presiding Officer 

The Mayor shall preside at all meetings of the Council. In the absence of the Mayor, the Mayor 

Pro-Tem shall preside. In the absence of both the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem, the designated 

Acting Mayor shall perform such duties. (Charter Section 4.5(e)).  

The presiding officer shall be responsible for enforcing these rules of procedure and conducting 

meetings in a manner which preserves order and decorum, prevents attacks on personalities or the 



5 
 

impugning of members’ motives, and confine debate or comments to the question under 

discussion. The presiding official shall endeavor to conduct the meeting in a fashion that draws a 

balance between the informality and congeniality possible in a small community while also 

maintaining the decorum and formality necessary to transact business in an orderly fashion. 

C. Compulsory Attendance & Conduct at Meetings 

Any two or more members of the Council may compel the attendance of absent members in such 

manner and under such penalties as may be prescribed by ordinance.  

The presiding officer shall enforce orderly conduct at meetings and any member of the Council or 

other officer who shall fail to conduct himself in an orderly manner at any meeting shall be 

deemed guilty of misconduct in office. Any police officer designated by the presiding officer of 

the meeting shall serve as the Sergeant-at-arms of the Council in the enforcement of the 

provisions of this section. (Charter Section 6.6) 

D. Agenda Preparation 

An agenda for each regular meeting shall be prepared by the City Manager in consultation with 

the Mayor in accordance with the following order of business: Call to Order, Pledge of 

Allegiance, Invocation, Roll Call, Public Hearings, Additions to the Agenda, Public Comment 

Concerning Agenda Items, Consideration of Minutes, Old Business, New Business, 

Consideration of Bills, Public Comment Concerning Non-Agenda Items, City Manager’s Report, 

Committee Reports, Council Member Comments, Closed Sessions, Adjournment.  

The order of business may be changed at a meeting by the presiding officer or by a majority vote 

of the council. A consent agenda may be used to allow the council to act on numerous 

administrative or noncontroversial items at one time. Included on this agenda can be 

noncontroversial matters such as approval of minutes, payment of bills, approval of recognition 

resolutions, etc. Upon request by any member of the council, an item shall be removed from the 

consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda for discussion.  

E. Agenda Distribution  

Agenda and council packets will be delivered to each Councilor on the Friday prior to each 

regular council meeting. The agenda will also be posted on the City’s website. Deadline for 

Public: Requests for agenda items with supporting documentation is 4:00 pm seven (7) business 

days prior to each regular council meeting. The Mayor and City Manager will authorize 

placement of the request. Deadline for Staff: An agenda item with supporting documentation is 

4:00 pm Thursday prior to each regular council meeting.  

F. Public Comment / Public Hearings  

At regular and special meetings of the council, individuals, attending in-person or virtually, 

wishing to be heard may address the council during the public comment/public hearing periods as 

set forth in the agenda under the following rules:  

1. Each speaker shall state name and address for the record.  

2. Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes of comment regarding agenda items, and 

three (3) minutes of comment regarding non-agenda items unless the presiding officer decides 

more time is necessary.  



6 
 

3. Each speaker shall try to be concise and refrain from repeating comments already 

addressed by the council.  

4. Speakers who do not cease speaking when asked to do so will be deemed out of order 

and will not be allowed to address the council again for the remainder of the meeting; continued 

disruption will warrant removal from the meeting.  

5. The council shall not decide issues that arise during public comment.  

6. Speakers should address the council through the presiding officer.  

7. Councilors and staff will not debate with the public.  

8. Speakers will not verbally attack City Councilors, City Staff, or members of the public 

attending the meeting. Any such behavior will not be tolerated and any person presenting in this 

manner will be warned by the Mayor and shall be removed by the Police Department for 

noncompliance.  

9. No vulgar or obscene language will be used by the speakers.  

10. Any information the speaker wants to distribute to the Council must first ask the 

Chair (Mayor) if they may present the Council written comments at the meeting.  

11. If a speaker includes specific questions to the Council in their Public Comments, the 

Council has no obligation to respond. 

12. Members of the public are encouraged to contact City Departments during regular 

business hours to ask questions, raise concerns, and request information about City matters. 

13. Members of the public have no right to address the Council or make comments 

outside of the Public Comment. At any time, the Council, in its discretion, may accept comments 

from the public. However, outside of the Public Comment time, the Council is under no 

obligation to hear comments from the public during a meeting.  

IV. VOTING  

A. Duty to Vote: Council members present at a meeting shall vote on every matter before the 

body unless otherwise excused or prohibited from voting by law. (Charter Section 6.7(c)).  

1. A member is excused from voting where the member has a conflict of interest as 

determined under the conflict-of-interest provision of these rules.  

2. A member may abstain from a vote for approval of minutes if the member did not 

attend the meeting for which the minutes apply.  

3. A member, in order to vote, must be present at the time the vote is taken. Voting by 

proxy or other forms of communication is not permitted.  

4. Any member refusing to vote, except when not so required by this section, shall be 

guilty of misconduct in office. 

B. Vote Required for Action: The concurring vote of four members of the council is required to 

make any order, recommendation, decision, or determination upon any matter, except as otherwise 

provided in these Rules or Ordinance or City Code or State law.  



7 
 

1. A simple majority of a quorum is required for procedural motions or resolutions, such 

as: (a) Motion to approve or amend the minutes (b) Motion to defer (c) Motion to postpone (d) 

Motion to recess (e) Motion to adjourn (f) Motion to recognize achievement or contribution (g) 

Motion to add matters to the agenda (h) Motion to approve consent agenda (i) Motion to set 

Public Hearings  

C. Calling for the Vote  

1. Voting on procedural motions or resolutions described in B above may be a voice vote.  

2. In all matters other than procedural, the presiding officer shall call for a voice vote for 

and against the matter. If on a voice vote no member states opposition to the motion, it shall be 

deemed to have passed unanimously and shall be so recorded. In the event any member votes in 

opposition to the motion, a roll call shall be conducted and recorded.  

3. In all roll call votes the names of the members of the Council shall be called in 

alphabetical order and the name to be called first be advanced one position alphabetically in each 

successive roll call vote. (Charter Section 6.7(d)).   

D. Debate/Discussion  

Debate/Discussion is to occur after a motion has been made on an agenda item, and that motion is 

seconded. The presiding officer will call for comments on the motion. No Councilor is entitled to 

speak a second time while any other member wishes to make the first speech.  

V. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

A. Disclosure 

Before participating in a decision or hearing or casting a vote on a matter on which a member 

may reasonably be considered to have a conflict of interest, the member shall disclose the 

potential conflict of interest to the Council. The Council will determine by a vote if a conflict of 

interest does exist.  

B. Definition  

A conflict of interest for a member of the Council shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, 

a matter pending before the Council which:  

1. Concerns the member himself or herself  

2. Concerns work on land owned by the member or which is adjacent to land owned by 

the member  

3. Involves a corporation, company, partnership or other entity in which the member is a 

part owner or any other relationship where the member may stand to have a financial gain or loss.  

4. Results in a pecuniary benefit to the member.  

5. Concerns the member’s spouse, children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, 

brothers, sisters, grandparents, parent’s in-law, or members of the member’s household.  

6. The member’s employee or employer is: An applicant or agent for the applicant, or has 

a direct interest in the outcome. 



8 
 

7. The member has a close business or family relationship with an applicant, the 

applicant’s attorney or another representative, or any expert witness.  

8. A conflict of interest shall not include an interest the member may have in common 

with the general public interest.  

9. If such a conflict of interest is identified, the member shall disqualify himself or herself 

at the outset of the hearing or discussion and shall not participate in the discussion or decision.  

10. If there is a question whether a conflict of interest exists or not, the question shall be 

determined by a majority vote of the remaining members of the council.  

VI. GENERAL RULES  

A. Attendance at Meetings  

1. Council members shall use their best efforts to attend all meetings of the Council. 

Pursuant to the City Charter provisions, the absence of a member from three consecutive regular 

meetings or ¼ of meetings in any fiscal year shall operate to vacate the seat of the member, unless 

the absence is excused by the Council. (Charter Section 5.3(c)).  

2. The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council and shall be entitled to 

attend meetings of all of its committees and to take part in all discussions but shall have no vote. 

(Charter Section 4.7(e)).  

3. The City Clerk shall attend all meetings of the Council and keep a permanent journal 

of its proceedings. (Charter Sec. 4.12(a)) 

B. Filling Council Vacancy  

Vacancies in the offices of Mayor and Councilmembers shall, within thirty days, be filled for the 

unexpired term of the officer whose office has become vacant, by appointment by a majority vote 

of the members of the Council then in office. (Charter Section 5.7(a)). 

If any vacancy in the office of Mayor or Councilmembers is not so filled within the said thirty 

days after such vacancy occurs, or if four or five simultaneous vacancies in the offices of Mayor 

and Councilmembers, such vacancies shall be filled for the respective unexpired terms at a 

special election. (Charter Section 5.7(b)).  

C. Record of Meetings 

1. Recording Responsibilities: The City Clerk shall keep a journal of the Council 

proceedings, in English, of which a brief summary shall be published within ten (10) days 

following each meeting. The journal shall be signed by the City Clerk and approved in writing by 

the Mayor. (Charter Sec. 6.7(e))  

2. Contents of Minutes: The minutes of each meeting shall show the date, time, place, 

members present, members absent, any decisions made at a meeting open to the public, and the 

purpose or purposes for which a closed session is held. The minutes shall include a record of all 

votes taken at the meeting. Corrections in the minutes shall be made not later than the next 

meeting after the meeting to which the minutes refer. Corrected minutes shall be available no 

later than the next subsequent meeting after correction. The corrected minutes shall show both the 

original entry and the correction. OMA Sec. 9  



9 
 

3. Public Inspection: Minutes shall be public records open to public inspection and shall 

be available at the address designated on posted public notices. Copies of the minutes shall be 

available to the public at the reasonably estimated cost for printing and copying. Proposed 

minutes shall be available for public inspection not more than ten (10) business days after the 

meeting to which the minutes refer. Approved minutes shall be available for public inspection not 

later than five (5) business days after the meeting at which the minutes are approved by the public 

body; except those minutes of a closed session are not available to the public unless disclosure is 

required by a civil action, as provided in the Open Meetings Act. OMA Sec. 7(2), 9. 

D. Suspension of Rules: Any provision of these rules not governed by City Charter, City Code, or 

State law may be temporarily suspended by a concurring vote of four members of the Council. 

Such suspension must be for good cause and for a specified portion of a meeting.  

E. Amendment of Rules: The Council may amend these Rules of Procedure by a concurring vote 

of four members during any regular meeting or special meeting, provided that all members have 

received an advance copy of the proposed amendments at least ten (10) hours prior to the meeting 

at which such amendments are to be considered.  

 

 

Adopted:  

 



Resolution 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by______, supported by _______: 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Business Association and the Arts Dockside Committee 
request permission to sponsor and hold the “Arts Dockside 2022”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the event requires the use of the City Marina parking lot and lawns and 
public streets; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is understood there may be fees for services provided by the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 
regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Events status; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, as 
amended, requires certain criteria be met by the St. Ignace Business Association in compliance 
with the “Special Events” requirements of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Business Association has provided the City Council with all of 
the information required by Ordinance No. 413. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council has determined that the  
St. Ignace Business Association has met the criteria established in the various sections of 
Ordinance No. 413; and 
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does approve the St. Ignace 
Business Association to be a Special Event Organization and approves the use of the City 
Marina area and the easterly northbound lane of South State Street, between McCann Street on 
the South and Truckey Street on the North, for this event on: 

  
Saturday, September 3, and Sunday, September 4, 2022. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:   
No:    
Absent:  
 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the  
St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, March 7, 2022, at  
7:00 p.m. 

 

______________________________  

 Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 

AI/sb 
 



















 Resolution 
 

The following resolution was offered for adoption by ______, supported by _______: 
 
 WHEREAS, St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to conduct the “46th Annual 
St. Ignace Car Show Weekend”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 22, “Peddlers and Solicitors” of the City of St. Ignace Code, as 
amended, requires certain criteria be met by St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, to comply with the 
“Special Events” requirements of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, St. Ignace Visitors Bureau has agreed to provide the City Council with all of 
the information required by Chapter 22, “Peddlers and Solicitors” of the City of St. Ignace Code, 
as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is understood that there may be fees for certain services provided by the  
City; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 
regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Events status. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council has determined that St. Ignace 
Visitors Bureau, has agreed to meet the criteria established in the various sections of Chapter 
22, “Peddlers and Solicitors” of the City of St. Ignace Code, as amended, within the time frame 
established in said Chapter 22; and 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does approve St. Ignace Visitors 
Bureau to be a “Special Events Organization”, and approves the use of the various public 
properties within the City limits for this event on the days of Thursday, June 23 through Sunday, 
June 26, 2022, and further grants St. Ignace Visitors Bureau the authority to control vending 
approved by the City during the event.  The City of St. Ignace does not financially participate in 
the “46th Annual St. Ignace Cruise Show Weekend”; and  
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City does approve street closures, subject to 
compliance with the City and MDOT rules and regulations, and the use of the following areas 
and dates: 
 

46th Annual St. Ignace Cruise Show Weekend– June 23, 24, 25, 26, 2022 at the Coast 
Guard Park, and other public properties located between Stockbridge Street and Church 
Street on State Street.   
 
The Down Memory Lane Parade on Friday, June 24, 2022, Stockbridge Street to Church 
Street from 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m., subject to MDOT approval. 

 
The Car Show on Saturday, June 25, 2022, Ojibwa Trail will be closed from 5 a.m. to 5 
p.m. (not including Museum parking area); Marquette Street to Church Street from 5 
a.m. to 5 p.m., subject to MDOT approval. 

 
Roll Call Vote:  
 
Yes:   



No:   
Absent:   
 
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the  
St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, March 7, 2022 at  
7:00 p.m. 

 
______________________________ 
 Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 
 























City of St. Ignace - St. Ignace Visitors Bureau 2022 Fireworks Agreement 

 

This Agreement is entered into and made effective this ___ day of ________, 2022 between the City of 

St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan, A Home Rule City, 396 N. State Street, St. Ignace, Michigan, 

49781 (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, 6 Spring Street, St. Ignace, 

Michigan 49781, (hereinafter referred to as “Visitors Bureau”). 

The City agrees to make payments for the expense of the 2022 and 2023 fireworks per the Wolverine 

Fireworks contract, and Visitor’s Bureau agrees to pay the City in advance for all fireworks payments. 

The following schedule of payment will take place for each year of the Wolverine Fireworks contract: 

1. Prior to the last Friday of May each year of the Wolverine Fireworks contract, Visitor’s Bureau 

will pay the City the full amount to cover the expenses for the Saturday night fireworks dates 

listed in Attachment #1 of the annual permit, as well as $2,500 for the July 4th show. 

2. Any changes to the display dates, agreed to by both Parties, are also covered by this Agreement. 

3. Per the Wolverine Fireworks contract, the expense per fireworks display is $5,500.00. The 

Visitors Bureau will pay the full amount of $5,500.00 times the number of displays for the year 

to the City.  

The Visitors Bureau will also provide liability insurance for each agreed upon fireworks display, with the 

following parties being covered: the City, the Visitors Bureau, and Wolverine Fireworks Display Inc. 

It is also agreed that Visitor’s Bureau will be responsible for providing 2 rooms for each Saturday night 

display for the term of the contract. 

 

The undersigned attest that they are legally acting on behalf of the named parties. 

 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE     ST. IGNACE VISITORS BUREAU 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Darcy D. Long, City Manager    Quincy Ranville, Events Director 

 

Date: ____________________________  Date: ____________________________ 



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
 
The following resolution was offered for adoption by ______, supported by _______: 
 
 WHEREAS, St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to sponsor and hold Saturday 
night fireworks displays; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, as 
amended, requires certain criteria be met by St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, to comply with the “Special 
Events” requirements of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, St. Ignace Visitors Bureau has agreed to provide the City Council with all of the 
information required by Chapter 22, “Peddlers and Solicitors” of the City of St. Ignace Code, as 
amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is understood that there may be fees for certain services provided by the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 
regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Event status; and 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council has determined that St. Ignace 
Visitors Bureau has agreed to meet the criteria established in the various sections of Chapter 22, 
“Peddlers and Solicitors” of the City of St. Ignace Code, as amended, within the time frame 
established in said Chapter 22; and 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does approve St. Ignace Visitors 
Bureau to be a “Special Events Organization”, and grants to them the authority to host fireworks on 
the following dates in 2022: May 28, June 25, July 4, July 9, July 16, July 23, July 30, August 6, 
August 13, August 20, August 27, and September 3 at dusk; in the event of weather cancellation, 
the fireworks shall be postponed by one (1) day; and 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council grants St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, the 
authority to control the vending on the above dates, during the fireworks, beginning at dusk, so as 
to protect our local businesses. 
  
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:   
 
No:   
 
Absent:  
 
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace 
City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, March 7, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
______________________________ 
           Andrea Insley, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by , supported by  : 
 
WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, in association with Michigan Highlanders, 

requests permission to conduct the 2022 Highland Games; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event requires the use of the Coast Guard Park and surrounding public 
streets and parking lots; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance,” 
requires specific criteria be met for the event to be held; and 

 
WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 

regulations to qualify for Special Events status; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by the 

City; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the St. Ignace City Council has determined 
that the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau has agreed to meet the criteria established in the various 
sections of the Ordinance No. 413, and will provide a copy of the required insurance and event 
information prior to the event; and  
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does approve Special Events status 
for the 2022 Highland Games on June 11, 2022, and further approves the St. Ignace Visitors 
Bureau the authority to control vending during the event.  The City of St. Ignace does not 
financially participate in this event; and 

 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City does approve usage of Coast Guard Park, 

and parking on Ferry Lane, South State Street, and the Dock 3 boat launch parking lot for this 
event on: 

 
Saturday, June 11, 2022 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:   
No:   
Absent:   
Resolution declared  
 
With this certification, the above Resolution is a real copy of a Resolution presented to the  
St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, March 7, 2022, at  
7:00 p.m. 
 

       
   Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer

 





















Transfer or Amendment From Account To Account Amount Budgeted Dollar Amount Notes

General Fund

Amend Budget

101-000-683.000 

Michilimackinac Historical 

Society Reimb  $                                     -    $              300.00 

Revenue

Amend Budget 101-201-802 Bank Fees  $                                     -    $              600.00 

Budget Transfer 

101-265-853.000 

Communications, Bldg & 

Grounds

101-201-853.000 

Communications, 

Administration  $                                     -    $              300.00 

Moving IT email cost from Building & 

Grounds to Admin & amending its 

budget

Amend Budget 101-703-706.000  Wages  $                            500.00  $          1,500.00 

Amend Budget 101-703-715.000 Social Sec  $                               40.00  $              120.00 

Amend Budget 101-703-725.000 Work Comp  $                               10.00  $                30.00 

Amend Budget

101-703-900.000 Print & 

Publish  $                               50.00  $              500.00 

Building Inspector 

Fund

Amend Budget 249-000-491.000 STR Permits  $                                     -    $          6,500.00 
STR Permit Fees

Amend Budget
249-000-627.000 Inspection 

Fees  $                         1,000.00  $          3,000.00 
Increased due to STR Inspections

Amend Budget 249-702-708.000 Wages-STR  $                                     -    $          2,000.00 
STR Payroll Line-item

Amend Budget
249-702-725.000 Workman's 

Comp  $                                     -    $                20.00 

Amend Budget

249-702-808.000 Consulting 

Services  $                                     -    $          6,134.00 
Granicus cost

ZBA budget will need to be increased 

due to STR variance meetings (will be 

offset by variance fee)

CITY OF ST. IGNACE

BUDGET TRANSFERS & AMENDMENTS

7-Mar-22



Dock 3 Fund

Amend Budget 273-000-668.000 Rent/Lease  $                       21,855.00  $        30,236.00 
Revenue

Golf Course Fund

Amend Budget

584-797-935.000 Property 

Liability Insurance  $                                     -    $          3,500.00 

Water Fund

Amend Budget

591-000-642.000 Charge for 

Service  $                            203.70  $          9,000.00 
Revenue

Amend Budget

591-905-992.502 Int. 2018 

Ford Pickup  $                               60.00  $              115.00 

Marina Fund

Amend Budget 594-597-855.000 Website  $                                     -    $              156.00 

Amend Budget

594-905-992.000 Bond 

Interest  $                                     -    $        16,775.00 

Amend Budget

594-905-993.000 Paying Agent 

Fees  $                                     -    $              250.00 

Equipment Fund

Amend Budget

641-581-931.000 Building 

Maintenance Cont. Serv.  $                         1,000.00  $          3,600.00 

Current Tax Collection Fund

Amend Budget

703-000-664.000 Interest 

Income  $                                     -    $          2,300.00 

Amend Budget

703-000-685.000 Cash 

Over/Short  $                                     -    $                10.00 

Revenue




